
 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Wednesday, 13 November 2019 
 

Time:  6.30 p.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Room 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford,  
M32 0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including Officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  MINUTES   
 
To receive and, if so determined, to agree as a correct record the Minutes of 
the meeting held on 3 July 2019. 
 

1 - 4 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   
 
A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public questions submitted in 
writing to Democratic Services (democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk) by 4 
p.m. on the working day prior to the meeting. Questions must be relevant to 
the remit of the Committee and will be submitted at the meeting in the order in 
which they were received. 
 

 

5.  TRAFFORD HOUSING TRUST SOCIAL INVESTMENT FUND   
 
To receive a report of the Social Investment Manager from Trafford Housing 
Trust. 
 
 
 

5 - 16 

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 13 November 2019 
   

 

6.  BUDGET PRESENTATION   
 
To receive a presentation from the Leader of the Council, the Executive 
Member for Finance and Investment, and the Corporate Director of Finance 
and Systems.  
 

17 - 34 

7.  2019/20 CORPORATE PLAN Q1 PERFORMANCE REPORT   
 
To receive a report from the Assistant Director Corporate Strategy and Policy. 
 

35 - 52 

8.  TASK AND FINISH GROUP HIGH RISE CLADDING REPLACEMENT   
 
To receive a report from the Chair of the Committee. 
 

53 - 56 

9.  OVERVIEW REPORT   
 

57 - 70 

10.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   
 
Any other item or items which, by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified), the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered at 
this meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 
 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Committee 
 
Councillors D. Acton (Chair), J. Lamb (Vice-Chair), J. Holden, B. Shaw, R. Thompson, 
A.J. Williams, B.G. Winstanley, A.M. Whyte, Dr. K. Barclay (ex-Officio), D. Western (ex-
Officio) and J.D. Newgrosh. 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Alexander Murray, Democratic & Scrutiny Officer,  
Tel: 0161 912 4250 
Email: alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk  
 
This agenda was issued on Thursday, 7 November 2019 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH  
 
WEBCASTING 
  
This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
website and / or YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil 
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 
items. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/user/traffordcouncil


Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 13 November 2019 
   

 

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 
democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 
Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 
 

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
3 JULY 2019 
 
PRESENT  
 
Councillor D. Acton (in the Chair). 
Councillors J. Lamb (Vice-Chair), R. Thompson, A.J. Williams, B.G. Winstanley and 
Dr. K. Barclay (ex-Officio). 
 
 
In attendance 
 
Jenni Seex Legal Support & Complex Enforcement Lead, GMFRS 
John Wildman Watch Manager for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection 

Team, GMFRS 
Tim Rhodes Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
Richard Pollitt  Team Leader-Housing Standards & Pollution Control 
Alexander Murray Democratic and Scrutiny Officer 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. E. Brophy, J. Holden, 
B. Shaw, A.M. Whyte and D. Western 
 

9. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 2019/20  
 
RESOLVED: That the Membership of the Committee be noted. 
 

10. TERMS OF REFERENCE 2019/20  
 
RESOLVED: That the Terms of Reference be noted. 
 

11. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held 13 March 2019 be agreed as 
an accurate record and signed by the Chair. 
 

12. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No additional declarations were made. 
 

13. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
No questions were received. 
 

14. RETROFITTING SPRINKLERS  
 
The Watch Manager for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection Team and the Legal 
Support & Complex Enforcement Lead, Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service (GMFRS) gave a brief overview of a presentation on sprinklers which 
covered the way that modern sprinkler systems worked. The officers stated that 
there was an issue in terms of public perception of sprinklers whereby people 

Document Pack Page 1



Scrutiny Committee  
3 July 2019 

 

 

 
2 

believed that they caused as much damage as they prevent. The Committee were 
told that modern sprinkler systems used smaller amounts of water than the fire 
service would use if they had to put out a fire. The Committee were informed of a 
number of incidents whereby retrofitted sprinklers had saved residents lives and 
how the safety that such systems provided enabled elderly and frail people to stay 
in their home in safety longer than other options.  
 
After the presentation a video was delivered to the Committee, the video covered 
the legal requirements regarding the fitting of sprinkler systems within England. 
The video stated that there were still a large number of people across the England 
living in blocks of flats which did not have sprinkler systems installed. The video 
showed the difference between a fire in a block of flats without a sprinkler system 
and one that did. In the building that did have a sprinkler system there was no loss 
of life, minimal fire damage, and minimal fire crew time compared to the other fire 
which resulted in deaths, a number of flats being totally destroyed, the full 
evacuation of the building, and hours of multiple fire crews time. 
 
The video then went onto inform the Committee that modern sprinkler systems 
could be fitted with minimal disruption to the residents. It was no longer required 
for a building to be evacuated and residents rehomed whilst the system was fitted 
(which previously represented a large additional cost). The majority of high rise 
flats were suitable for the systems without any changes being made to the 
buildings infrastructure, the only ones that did require changes were those that did 
not have adequate water pressure.  The video detailed a scheme which had been 
undertaken in Sheffield to retrofit a number of tower blocks with sprinkler systems. 
The scheme proved that systems could be installed within high rise tower blocks 
with minimal disruption and at a reasonable cost. 
 
After the video the Watch Manager for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection Team 
informed the Committee that despite the video being almost 10 years old and the 
fire incidents being real there had not been great interest in adding sprinkler 
systems to tower blocks that did not legally require them. 
 
Following the video Committee Members were given the opportunity to ask 
questions. Committee Members asked a number of questions relating to the 
regulations around sprinklers. The Officers responded that there had been no 
change to the regulations within the last ten years, even following Grenfell Tower, 
and that housing developers were unlikely to install sprinkler systems in buildings 
if they were not required to do so. There was a recommendation following Grenfell 
Tower that buildings be retrofitted but it was not a legal requirement and had little 
to no impact upon developers. 
 
The Officers also informed the Committee that there were to be new regulations 
for care homes and nursing homes to have sprinklers due to the immobility of 
residents. This was of particular interest as it was vulnerable people who were the 
most at risk and therefore gained the most from having these systems fitted. 
 
Committee Members then asked a series of questions relating to public 
engagement that the fire service had conducted around sprinklers. The Officers 
responded that the fire service was doing a lot to improve the public image but it 

Document Pack Page 2



Scrutiny Committee  
3 July 2019 

 

 

 
3 

was an uphill battle. They gave an example of a recent advert by an insurance 
company showing a sprinkler being set off by a mobile phone and causing 
damage, which had undone a lot of the fire services hard work. The Chair added 
that while the fire service did a lot of work around public engagement developers 
lobbied in opposition to proposals to the regulations regarding sprinklers due to 
the short term costs, despite their obvious benefit.  
 
The Officers told the Committee that the government were looking to revise 
guidance and were currently consulting nationally. GMFRS was planning to 
respond to consultation that they felt the regulations on sprinkler retrofitting 
needed to be update. The Chair asked that the fire services send their 
consultation response be sent to the Committee once it was ready. 
 
RESOLVED:  

1) That the presentation and update be noted. 
2) That the Watch Manager for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection 

Team and the Legal Support & Complex Enforcement Lead, 
GMFRS be thanked for attending the meeting. 

3) That GMFRS are to send their consultation response to the 
Committee for information once it was ready. 

 
15. FIRE SAFETY IN HIGH RISE TOWER BLOCKS  

 
The Executive Member gave a brief overview of the report which covered the 5 
Trafford Housing Trust (THT) tower blocks within Trafford which had ACM 
cladding that was to be replaced by fire safe standard cladding. The replacement 
of the cladding was expected to be completed by February 2020. There had been 
the possibility of a privately owned tower block having ACM cladding but it had 
been found that this was not the case. During the time from Grenfell additional fire 
safety systems were put in place to ensure that the residents in the buildings were 
safe. 
 
The Executive Member informed the Committee that he had asked THT why this 
had taken so long and had not received a full response. The Officer present stated 
that they had received a response from THT which stated that the delay had been 
due to issues in accessing funding as the Government had delayed releasing the 
funding promised in the wake of Grenfell tower disaster. The Exec Member 
suggested that the Committee have a meeting THT to answer questions as to why 
it had taken so long for it to be done. 
 
The Chair asked about whether the Executive Member knew if THT were 
considering retrofitting Sprinklers. The GMFRS officers stated that they were 
aware that THT were consulting with residents in a tower block within Trafford and 
they were doing what they could to convince residents to allow a system to be put 
in place. The Executive Member asked whether it could ever reach a point where 
it was a matter of safety rather than requiring resident agreement. The GMFRS 
officers stated that THT would not be able to input a system without there being 
resident consent. If some say no it is then as to whether THT install the system in 
the rest of the building. The Chair proposed that a spotlight task and finish group 
be created to meet with THT regarding the changes to cladding, sprinkler systems, 

Document Pack Page 3



Scrutiny Committee  
3 July 2019 

 

 

 
4 

and general fire safety. The Officers from GMFRS stated that they would also be 
happy to attend such a meeting to add their perspective.  
 
RESOLVED: 

1) That the report was noted. 
2) That a spotlight task and finish group was to be created to meet 

with THT regarding cladding, sprinklers, and fire safety. 
3) That the Officers from GMFRS be invited to the meeting with THT 

to add their professional perspective. 
 

16. DRAFT ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT  
 
The Chair gave a brief introduction to the report before asking Members for their 
questions and views on the report. One Committee Member drew attention to part 
1.7 of the report which stated that due to the lack of resources resulting from 
changes in the team the Annual Scrutiny Review would not be held this year. The 
Committee Member put forward that this should be revised and that a review 
should be held. The rest of the Committee agreed to the change and the Chair 
asked officers to arrange the Scrutiny Review to be held as soon as possible.  
 
RESOLVED: 

1) That the report be amended to reflect that the Annual Scrutiny 
Review would be held. 

2) That Officers arrange a scrutiny review as soon as possible. 
3) That following the above amendments the report be agreed and 

submitted to Council. 
 

17. OVERVIEW REPORT  
 
The Chair gave a brief overview of the report before asking Members if they had 
any suggestions for additions to the Committee’s Work Programme. Councillor 
Winstanley requested for there be a task and finish group to be conducted looking 
at disability access. The Committee agreed to add the task and finish group to the 
work programme and Councillors Winstanley, Williams, Lamb, Acton, Thompson, 
and the Chair volunteered to be on the group. Councillor Winstanley then 
requested that this task and finish group be opened up to all Councillors which 
was agreed by the Committee.  
 
Members then asked whether additional items could be added to the work 
programme at a later date and they were told that they could suggest additional 
items at any time. 
 
RESOLVED: 

1) That the report be noted. 
2) That a task and finish group looking at disability access be added 

to the Committee’s work programme. 
 
 
 
The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and finished at 8.01 pm 

Document Pack Page 4



1 

 

                                              THT Social Investment Fund 

For Information 

13th November 2019 

Report for Trafford Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title 

Social Investment Fund -Scrutiny Committee update November 2019 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1. This paper provides an update on the performance to date for Trafford Housing Trust’s Social 

Investment Fund which forms part of the Partnership Agreement between Trafford Housing Trust and 

Trafford Council.  

2. Recommendations 

2.1. To note the contents of this report. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. The Social Investment Fund was launched in September 2017 following a detailed review and 

consultation with stakeholders regarding how Trafford Housing Trust can maximise the impact of its 

commitment to invest in Trafford communities.  

 

3.2. This paper provides an update to the Scrutiny Committee on progress to date, including: 

1. Executive summary of activity to date 

2. Financial performance year end 2018/19 and year to date 2019/20 

3. Applications received and grants awarded 

4. Key trends 

5. Commitment to Youth Provision  

6. Funding outcomes (based on completed projects) 

7. Capacity Building activity 

8. Forward plans 

4. Executive summary of activity to date since September 2017 

4.1 To date we have invested £2,553,681 across 192 projects and an additional £295k in strengthening the 

VCSE sector through Capacity Building.   

4.2 Management costs as a percentage of total spend have reduced significantly over the first three financial 

years. This trend suggests that over all, a cap on management costs at 10% of the fund is achievable 

once full scale up has been reached. 

4.3 Overall applications have increased in value over the last two years.  

Document Pack Page 5



2 

 

4.4 We have four priority themes, ‘Strengthening Families and Communities’; ‘Employment and Skills’; 

‘Boosting Household Incomes’; and ‘Long-Term Economic Growth’. The two latter themes 

consistently attract a lower percentage of applications. 

4.5 There is potentially a disproportionately low level of spend (£171k) in West Trafford, and a high level 

of spend (£122k) in South Trafford compared to the Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IDM) data.  

4.6 We have a commitment to invest at least £50,000 in Youth related projects per year. To date we have 

invested in 68 projects targeting young people in Trafford totaling £888,418.31. 

4.7 More information can be found on our website: socialinvestment.traffordhousingtrust.co.uk or the 

GrantNav website which published all our investments: grantnav.threesixtygiving.org 

 

5. Financial performance year end 2018/19 and year to date 2019/20 

 

 

5.1 Over the last two years we have been scaling up our Social Investment work. Our investment in 

communities through the Social Investment Fund is approximately double previous annual investments 

through Community Panels. This demonstrates substantial growth and we are currently forecasting to 

invest £1.8 million this financial year.  

5.2 Currently the average management costs equate to 11% of the investment spend. Management costs 

were disproportionately high in year one due to additional set up costs and lower investment cost whilst 

activity scaled up. Management costs have reduced from approximately 31% in year one, to 10.8% in 

year two and 6.9% year to date in year three. This trend suggests that over all, a cap on management 

costs at 10% is achievable.  

  

£000’s 

2017- 2018 

Sept - March  2018/19 

Full Year 

2019/20 

April – 

Sept 

Total investment 

of Social 

Investment Fund 

to date 

  

Management costs 77k  128k 50k 255k   

Grants/Loans/Commissioning 247k 923k 537k 1,707k   

Capacity Building 101k 131k 76k 308k   

Management overheads 

Not 
calculated  245K  151k 

Not included in 

investment 

calculation 

 

 
 

 
Total to 

date 

£2,270k 
  

Document Pack Page 6



3 

 

 

6. Applications received and grants awarded 

 

*N.B Micro – less than £500; Small - £500-£2000; Medium £2000-£10,000; Large Over £10,000  

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 7



4 

 

 

7. Key trends 

7.1 We regularly analyse spend against four areas 

 Size of applications 

 Theme of application 

 Geography of beneficiaries 

 Equality and diversity of beneficiaries  

More detail about the trends and our response to these trends is outlined below: 

 

7.2 Spend by type of application:  

7.2.1 The number of applications approved year to date in 2019/20 has decreased in volume and increased 

in value when compared to the same period in 2018/19 (£805,357 invested in 61 projects in 18/19, compared 

to £880,683 invested in 46 projects in 19/20). The general theme has seen an increase in large applications 

(up by 3 over the 5-month period) and a reduction in micro applications with 11 fewer applications being 

approved with the same 5-month period.   

 

7.2.2 In our commitment to compliment rather than duplicate the resources of Partner Organisations, we 

have formed a stronger link to Trafford Council’s Neighbourhood fund. This fund launched in January 2019. 

With a very similar offer to our small and micro grants, the fund is open all year-round offering grants of 

£500 for events and £2000 for projects benefiting Trafford residents. We have been proactively referring 

groups to this funding pot. We will continue to monitor the affect this is having on our micro and small 

applications and ensure that promotional materials, including public communications encourage more micro 

and small applications. 

 

Applications approved by size 2018/19 

 

Document Pack Page 8



5 

 

 

Applications approved by size 2019/20 

 

 

7.3 Spend by theme 

7.3.1 Our priority themes are: ‘Strengthening Families and Communities’; ‘Employment and Skills’; ‘Boosting 

Household Incomes’; and ‘Long-Term Economic Growth’. ‘Boosting Household Incomes’ and ‘Long-Term 

Economic Growth’ consistently attract a lower percentage of applications and spend reflecting the complex 

nature of interventions in these areas. 

 

Applications approved by theme 2018/19 

 

Document Pack Page 9



6 

 

 

Applications approved by theme 2019/20 

 

 

 

7.3.2 The team are working to be more proactive in these areas to work with Partners to consider how we 

develop solutions. Over the last 18 months we have:  

 researched a number of key areas to better understand how we can proactively invest including: Poverty 

Premium; Food Poverty; Child Poverty; Employment and Skills; and Mental health and poverty.  

 trialled a ‘Personal Support Fund’ to be implemented by THT Customer Support Team to provide 

emergency financial relief to THT customers facing financial hardship. 

 worked with TMBC and other partners to deliver a Trafford ‘Pop-Up Business School’ to promote and 
support business start-ups and explore the gap in support services for business start-ups where 

traditional business advice is not suitable.  

 worked with partners to ensure children entitled to free school meals have access to at least one meal 

a day over the summer holiday period for 2019.  

 

7.4 Spend by Geography:  

7.4.1 Total applications with location data = 127, of which: 

North Trafford 50 £229,711.63 

West Trafford 26 £171,601.60 

Central Trafford 21 £81,637.00 

South Trafford 25 £122,798.00 

Across Trafford 24 £509,995.04 

In Greater Manchester including Trafford 8 £217,969.04 

 

7.4.2 This data suggests there is potentially a disproportionately low level of spend (£171k) in West Trafford, 

and a high level of spend (£122k) in South Trafford compared to the IMD data shown in the map below.  We 

Document Pack Page 10



7 

 

are proactively working across the West of Trafford and taking a more Community Development based 

approach to encourage and support grass root projects. It should be noted, however, that a majority of grant 

spend (£510k) goes towards projects that deliver services borough-wide. 

 

7.4.3 In total we have funded 4 projects to date which have a Greater Manchester coverage benefiting 

Trafford residents, these include: 

 Greater Manchester Homelessness Social Impact Bond £50,000 loan– As one of three loan 

investors, THT is working in partnership with over 20 housing providers and private rented 

sector partners to ensure people with a history of rough sleeping are provided with a home that 

is in the right place at the right time to meet their needs and aspirations. 

 The Proud Trust £87,675 – A contribution to the rebuilding of their Centre and funding for an 

outreach programme across Trafford to raise awareness of the Centre and how it can help 

LGBT+ people in Trafford. 

 Talk Listen Change £79,349- A project working with women who use violence in their intimate 

relationships and expand a pilot of behaviour change work across Trafford and then Greater 

Manchester. 

 Greater Manchester Poverty Action £10,000 - Food Link Greater Manchester bringing Greater 

Manchester's emergency food providers together to build stronger networks of people and 

organisations that work to address food poverty. 

 

7.4.4 In addition, the following funded projects are located on the boarder of Trafford in Old Trafford and 

have reported benefiting Greater Manchester residents in addition to Trafford beneficiaries.  

 

Organisation Name 

Amount 

Awarded 

Diamonds Morris Dance Troupe  1709 

Manchester Ceramics Collective 2000 

1st Buddha's Light 32nd Stretford Scout Group 1000 

Lord's Taverners  36,236 

The Proud Trust 2000 

Globe Community Fitness & Activities Centre 8000 

 

 

7.5 Spend by Equality and Diversity  

7.5.1 For the 93 projects (totalling £1,071,255) where we have equality and diversity of beneficiaries’ statistics 

available (i.e. those completed through the online portal) we have the following information: 

• 4 projects (£102,845) mostly benefitted people of a particular sexuality. 

• 20 projects (£209,505) mostly benefitted Disabled people. 

• 9 projects (£134,625) mostly benefitted people from a particular gender (1 male, 8 female). 

• 9 projects (£81,628) mostly benefitted people from a particular ethnic background. 

• 27 projects (£340,813) mostly benefitted people under 25. 

• 10 projects (£117,445) mostly benefitted people over 65. 

 

7.5.2 Trafford Council has recently published its Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), available at 

www.traffordjsna.org.uk, which provides demographic statistics relating to the current and future health and 

Document Pack Page 11



8 

 

social care needs of local communities.  This provides a wealth of data at a locality and ward level which the 

Social Investment Team will use develop a better understanding of the challenges faced by communities 

across the borough, and to identify potential priorities for future investment.  

 

8. Commitment to Youth Provision  

8.1 As part of the Transfer Promise agreement the Social Investment Fund is committed to spending at least 

£50,000 a year in project with a Trafford Youth focus. To date we have invested in 68 projects targeting 

young people in Trafford totaling £888,418.31.  

 

8.2 We are keen in ensure that investment in Youth related projects compliments the wider landscape of 

Youth Service provision in Trafford. Due to the changes in Youth Service provision in Trafford over the last 

2 years, we have been flexible in how we achieve this. Initially we had a close working relationship with 
Trafford Youth Trust and sought their input into decision regarding youth funding. As the Youth Trust closed 

we worked with Trafford Commissioners to ensure a collaborative approach to sustaining impactful youth 

projects in Trafford. We are now working with the Commissioners and newly established Youth Service to 

maximise our shared resources and investment in Youth Provision.    

 

9. Funding outcomes (based on completed projects)  

9.1 As projects come to an end we ask for a report on what was achieved. Many of our projects span over 

one to two years. To date we have collected the following data from the 78 projects which have come to 

an end.  

 

 Total of 17455 direct beneficiaries reported. 

 88% of projects achieved their forecasted outcomes (we have seen an improvement in this from 80% 

in 2018-9 to 98% to date in 2019-20).  

 5254 adults and children supported to learn new skills including: internet safety; British Sign Language; 
Football coaching level 1; Media Broadcasting skills; Science, Technology, English and Maths. 

 16,192 people supported through family and community projects. 

 410 people supported towards employment opportunities. 

 

10. Capacity Building Activity 

10.1 We invest in the sustainability of VCSE organisations through employing Capacity Builders to develop 
skills and knowledge with business planning, income generation, governance and demonstrating impact.  

 

10.2 Since April 2018 we have conducted a six monthly follow up with customers to ask about the 
difference working with a Capacity Builder made. Between April ’18 and March ’19 we had 53 respondents:  

• 72% said we had increased their confidence. 

• 77% said they had a lot more focus. 

• 64% said they were able to provide better value for money. 

• 85% said their work was more sustainable. 

 

10.3 Feedback regarding Capacity Building support has included:  

Document Pack Page 12



9 

 

“Both Jonathan and Zoe were extremely supportive and open minded to the services and support we want 
to offer to families in Trafford. They took the time to understand our services and the reasons behind our 
project. They gave us focus and confidence in our ability as an organisation and I found the whole process a 
real pleasure and so helpful.” 

 

“Our original Trafford Housing Trust application process took 3 alterations before it was successful, 
capacity builder Jonathan Baker held our hands through the process and therefore gave us a good insight 
into the requirements of the fund, a fantastic development opportunity which led to us securing match 
funding to stretch this project. Additional match funding was gained from Awards for All and Cash for Kids. 
Which meant the project was extended from 6 months to 9 months and allowed us to engage an additional 
13 young people.” 

 

 “Kate's enthusiasm and understanding of problems and her ability to advise us how to overcome 
difficulties”  

 

“If Carlsberg designed meetings it would look a lot like today …thanks for a thoroughly enjoyable and 
exciting meet. It’s not often you get three heads in a meeting all equally passionate and driven towards 
making something happen…”  

 

“Love a social investor who dots the ’I’s’ and crosses the ‘t’s’ for organisations via capacity building and 
community links, beyond a funding pot. Experiencing just that from THT Social Investment team today”.  

 

11. THT and L&Q Acquisition  

11.1 THT and L&Q announced in April that they are in talks which will see THT become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of L&Q. This is acquisition was completed on 2nd October 2019, following to due 
diligence, customer consultation and the development of a five-year business plan. 

 

11.2 The acquisition of THT by L&Q builds on a highly successful joint venture partnership and will result 
in more investment in building new homes across the North West; improving the standard of existing 
stock; and creating a North West Foundation and Academy to invest in local communities to help the 
most vulnerable in society.  

 

11.3 The commitment to invest £10 million in Trafford Communities between 2017 and 2027 will remain 
the same and there are no plans to change the delivery mechanism for this investment (e.g. through grants, 
commissioning, loans and capacity building). The current Social Investment function of THT will form part 
of the North West Foundation once it’s launched in 2020. In addition to our current investment in 
commitments in Trafford, THT would also invest additional resources in other areas where we are 
developing or own housing stock. It is envisaged that around £4million a year will be invested in 
communities through the NW Foundation which will include a focus on employment and skills for adults 
and working more closely with schools to provide young people with tangible links into local employers. 
Stakeholder engagement sessions will be taking place to help shape the NW Foundation proposals 
throughout November with focus groups being held in January.  

 

12. Future plans 

Document Pack Page 13



10 

 

12.1 Trafford Poverty Strategy - We are part of the Trafford JSNA working group and Poverty Strategy 
sub group and will continue to work in Partnership with Trafford Council to develop a Trafford Poverty 
Strategy.  

 

12.2 Living wage funder and award - In June 2018 THT became the first Housing Association to join the 
Living Wage Funder scheme – a movement of grant-makers that help charities and organisations to pay the 
real living wage and tackle in work poverty.  We will be working with other Trafford based Living Wage 
employers and Trafford Council to promote this campaign.  

 

12.3 Third Party Evaluation – THT Governance have recently commissioned Ark Consultancy to conduct 
an independent review to understand the effectiveness of the current model in delivering its objectives. 
The recommendations within the report are now being considered in order to improve our economic 
impact reporting and consider reviewing the strategic objectives to simplify the model and focus our 
resources.  

 

1. Author and Contact Details 

1.1.    Fay Jackson, Social Investment Manager: fay.jackson@traffordhousingtrust.co.uk 

Larry Gold, Chief Executive: larry.gold@traffordhousingtrust.co.uk    

 

Document Pack Page 14

mailto:fay.jackson@traffordhousingtrust.co.uk
mailto:larry.gold@traffordhousingtrust.co.uk


11 

 

Appendix 1.  Social Investment Spend YTD and Pipeline Forecast (18/19) 

 

 

 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 17



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 18



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 19



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 20



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 21



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 22



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 23



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 24



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 25



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 26



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 27



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 28



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 29



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 30



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 31



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 32



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 33



D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 34



 1 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 

 
Report to:   Scrutiny Committee 
Date:    13th November 2019 
Report for:    Information 
Report of:    Assistant Director Corporate Strategy and Policy 
 
  

 
Report Title 
 

 
Corporate Plan 2019/20 Quarter 1 Report 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
The attached report provides a summary of performance against the Council’s 
Corporate Plan, 2019/20.  The report covers the period 1st April to 30th June 
2019.   
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
That the Scrutiny Committee notes the contents of the Corporate Plan First 
Quarter Report. 
 

   
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name: Dianne Geary    
Extension: 1821   
 
 
Background Papers: None 

Document Pack Page 35



 2 

 
 
 

 
1.0 Background  
 

1.1 The report provides a summary of performance against the Council’s Corporate 
Plan 2019/20 and supporting management information, for the period 1st April to 
31st June 2019. 

 
1.2 The Council’s Corporate Plan reports key performance indicators and activity 

against the corporate priorities:  
 

 Building Quality, Affordable and Social Housing 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Successful and Thriving Places 

 Children and Young People 

 Pride in Our Area 

 Green and Connected 

 Targeted Support 

 Corporate Services 
 

1.3 Regular performance monitoring ensures that Executive and the Corporate 
Leadership Team can take necessary action to keep performance on track and 
aligned to the priorities.  

 
2.0 Performance Update  
 

2.1 Each priority has a summary of activity for quarter 1 – these activities are a 
combination of qualitative and quantitative activity.  The output for each quarter 
depends on the deliverables that are achieved for that quarter. As several of the 
key performance indicators are annual the end of year report will be a larger set. 
   

2.2 These are the key performance indicators for each priority and the quarter 1 
outturn:  

 

    DEFINITION Target 
Actual 

Q1 

R
A
G 

Q 
or 
A  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

Q
u

a
li
ty

 

a
n

d
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

The number of housing completions 600 442  Q 

The number of affordable housing completions 100 27 



Q 

H
e
a
lt

h
 

a
n

d
 

W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 

Number of NHS Health Checks delivered to the eligible 
population aged 40-74. 
 

2.5% 
1.8% Q4 
18/19 




 Q 

S
u

c
c

e
s
s
fu

l 

a
n

d
 T

h
ri

v
in

g
 

P
la

c
e
s

 

Through the Trafford Pledge increase the number of 
people into employment 

100A 
25Q 

19 Q 

 
Increase the number of people who engage with libraries 
by 5% 
 

912,891
A  

228,222
Q 

228,514
Q1 

  Q 

C
h

il
d

re

n
 a

n
d

 

Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e
o

p
le

 

Maintain the low level of 16-17 year olds who are not in 
education training or employment (NEET), plus unknown, 
in Trafford  

2.75% 2.61% 



Q 

Document Pack Page 36



 3 

    DEFINITION Target 
Actual 

Q1 

R
A
G 

Q 
or 
A  

Children who are "looked after" rate per 10,000 73 74.2 Q 

P
ri

d
e

 i
n

 

O
u

r 
A

re
a

 

Improve the % of household waste arisings which have 
been sent by the Council for recycling/composting 

35.4% 36%  Q 
G

re
e
n

 a
n

d
 

C
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
 

Number of green flag awards achieved in Trafford 10 11  A 

T
a
rg

e
te

d
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

Admissions to Residential or Nursing Care for Older 
People during the year per 100,000 population (ASCOF 
2Aii) 

600A 
 

176 Q 
164 Q 

Delayed Transfers of Care attributable to Adult Social 
Care per 100,000 pop 18+ (ASCOF 2Cii) 

5.0 5.9 Q 

Increase the number of people prevented from becoming 
homeless 

400A 
100Q 

123 Q 

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 

% of major planning applications processed within 
timescales 

90% 86% Q 

Percentage of Council Tax collected 98.1% 30% Q 

Enquires shifted to online 10,000 12,057 Q 

 
 
 

 
. 
 
 

  

Document Pack Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



www.trafford.gov.uk

APRIL TO JUNE 2019

CORPORATE PLAN 
QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 39



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

Hello and welcome to our 
first quarterly review of our 
Corporate Plan performance. 

From the outset, we have set out 
ambitious proposals to make 
Trafford a place where residents 
start, live and age well. While our 
vision is ambitious, it is attainable 
and we are determined to succeed. 
That is because every person 
here at the Council is determined; 
determined to improve the lives 
of residents; create better job 
opportunities; deliver better areas for 
the communities we serve; enable 
better healthcare outcomes for all. 
In short – we are all determined 
to build the best future for all our 
communities and everyone in 
Trafford.

This vision is not just an abstract 
ideal. Our Corporate Plan contains 
concrete proposals on how exactly 
we can achieve our vision. This 
review shows how far we have come 
in matching our high ambitions so 
far. As can be seen in the following 
pages, there has been great work 
done, with great support of our 
communities, residents, business 
and partners. We have launched 
strategies that help our care leavers, 

homeless people, those in receipt of 
social care, carers and apprentices.

Our recycling rate has improved, 
we now have 11 Green Flag parks 
and we are well on track to meet our 
target for extra properties in Trafford, 
enabling people who want to stay or 
move to Trafford to have a choice of 
affording homes.

But there can be no let up and I can 
assure you that there will not be. 
Since I became chief executive of the 
Council six months ago, I have been 
all around the borough, listening to 
residents, speaking with businesses 
and talking to communities. It is 
delightful to see just how much pride 
everyone has in Trafford and I am 
determined that the next quarterly 
report will have even more good 
news about how 
we are meeting 
our vision for our 
borough.

FOREWORD BY 
THE LEADER

FOREWORD BY 
THE CHIEF EXEC

Sara Todd
Chief Executive of Trafford Counci 

Trafford is a thriving, diverse, 
prosperous, and culturally 
vibrant borough sitting at the 

heart of Greater Manchester.

Since the launch of our Corporate 
Plan in March, a lot has happened 
and striving for excellence remains 
the same. I am very pleased that 
our last budget saw more money 
for children’s and adults. This will 
help us with our key priorities of 
reducing health inequalities and 
ensuring that all children and young 
people in Trafford have a fair start. 
Our investment in leisure centres 
over the next three years will help 
meet our priorities to encourage 
and support people to make healthy 
choices in relation to their health 
and wellbeing. 

Strategically, we continue to look 
ahead with redevelopments of our 
town centres to ensure Trafford 
remains a great place to live and 
work. A great example is our plans 
for Old Trafford and Stretford, 
where our exciting town centre 
redevelopment plans include the 
campus of University Academy 92, 
(UA92). This new university, which 
will open its doors for students for 
the first time this month, will bring 

together the best of academia, 
business, media and sport.

The work we do is not done in 
isolation. Partnerships are vital 
to deliver joined-up services 
that tackle issues head on and 
deliver plans on a strategic level. 
Our integrated commissioning 
services with Trafford CCG are 
a great example of, by working 
together, we can improve the health 
and wellbeing of everyone in the 
borough.

This quarterly report into our 
Corporate Plan highlights key 
achievements so far and there is 
much to commend. Our priority 
remains to continue the work we do 
to improve the lives of all Trafford 
residents.

Councillor Andrew Western
Leader of Trafford Council 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 40



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

THE 
PRIORITIES 
AND 
OUTCOMES 
FOR 
TRAFFORD

Building Quality, Affordable and 
Social Housing 
Trafford has a choice of quality homes that people can afford

Health and Wellbeing
Trafford has improved health and wellbeing, and reduced health 
inequalities

Successful and Thriving Places 
Trafford has successful and thriving town centres and communities

Children and Young People
All children and young people in Trafford will have a fair start 

Pride in Our Area
People in Trafford will take pride in their local area 

Green and Connected
Trafford will maximise its green spaces, transport and digital 
connectivity

Targeted Support
People in Trafford will get support when they need it most

The Council has identified seven 
strategic priorities that we believe 
are key to enabling Trafford 
residents, businesses and staff to 
thrive. Our priorities set out our 
aspirations for our people, place 
and communities, and how they 
can affect and improve their daily 
lives.
Our people are our greatest resource. 
Through engagement with our staff we will 
create an environment for staff to grow and 
develop life-long skills and see the benefit of 
their contribution to the borough. We want to 
be an employer of choice. 

These priorities are not just for the Council 
but for the whole community and have 
been shared with members of the Trafford 
Partnerships. In order to make the difference 
we want to make, we will need to work closely 
and effectively with partners, residents, 
businesses and communities to make this a 
success.

This corporate plan describes our overall 
approach and outlines the Trafford vision.

OUR PRIORITIES D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 41



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

HIGHLIGHTS – KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Building Quality 
and Affordable 
Housing

Successful and 
Thriving Places

Health & 
Wellbeing

Children and 
Young People

The number of housing 
completions:

Annual: 600

Q1: 442 

The number of affordable 
housing completions:

Annual: 100

Q1: 27 

Through the Trafford Pledge 
increase the number of 
people into employment:

Target:   15 

Actual:  19

Increase the number of 
people who engage with 
libraries by 5%:

Target:  228, 222

Actual:  228, 514

Number of NHS Health Checks 
delivered to the eligible population 
aged 40-74:

Target: 2.5%

Actual: 1.8% (Q4 18/19)

Children who are “looked 
after” (rate per 10,000) 
 
Target: 73 
Actual: 74.2

Maintain the low level of 
16-17 year olds who are not 
in education, training or 
employment:

Target: 2.75% 
Actual: 2.61%

Pride in Our Area

Green and 
Connected

Targeted Support

Central Services

Percentage of total tonnage of 
household waste which has 
been collected for recycling.

Target: 34.4%

Actual: 36%

Number of green flag awards 
achieved in Trafford

Target:  10

Actual:  11

Admissions to Residential or Nursing 
Care for Older People during the year 
per 100,000 population 
Target: 176 
Actual: 164

Delayed Transfers of Care attributable 
to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop 
18+
Target: 5.0
Actual: 5.9

Increase the number of people 
prevented from becoming homeless
Target: 100
Actual: 123

% of major planning applications 
processed within timescales

Target: 90%
Actual: 86%

Percentage of Council Tax collected

Target: 25%
Actual: 30%

Enquiries shifted to online

Target: 10,000
Actual: 12,057

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 42



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to enable people to live well at home

 people to be able to afford to live in the area

 fair and inclusive and quality housing for all

 our children to be able to continue living in Trafford

 to create homes, not just housing

Building quality, affordable 
and social housing

Priority 1: 

Increased overall number of 
properties
number of housing completions: 

Annual target 600 Achieved in Q1 442
Number of affordable homes completed:

Annual target 100 Achieved in Q1 27
Developer contributions: 

Trafford is working together with developers to improve the amount of affordable 
housing and secure developer contributions through the planning application 
process.

2018-19 £3,108,922 was achieved 

2019-20 our annual target is to achieve another £3 million 

We are trying to return more empty properties back into use to ease pressure on 
the housing stock, improve the neighbourhood environment and meet housing 

need. Currently we are working on a new strategy and a public 
consultation will begin in September, with a final version in place in December. 

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 43



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 everyone to live well and be active for as long possible

 good health services for everyone and to reduce the 
inequalities in health and other outcomes

 fair and accessible services

 our towns to be accessible to all regardless of age or 
limitation

 people to experience excellent end of life care

 to improve people’s work-life balance and family life

Priority 2: 
Trafford has improved 
health and wellbeing, and 
reduced health inequalities 

Our Trafford Carers, Family and Friends Strategy was successfully launched 
during Carers Week in June 2019. The joint Council and CCG strategy sets 
out how we will work together with our carers to ensure carers receive the 

support they require. More than 5,000 carers are 
currently known to the Council, GPs and Trafford Carers Centre, which is our 
commissioned carer support service. 

To improve physical activity and mental well-being, we are aiming to deliver 

three Play Street events as part of the 2019-20 pilot. 
One event has been delivered in Q1.

To reduce smoking prevalence in routine and manual workers from 
26.8% in 2018 to 21.0% in 2021: Overall, we need 
3,000 routine and manual workers to quit by 2021. A six-month pilot to offer free 

e-cigarettes as part of stop smoking support has resulted in 58 routine and 

manual workers quitting, and 76 in some other high risk groups.

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 44



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to further develop our strong economy

 to continue to create jobs and opportunities for people

 Trafford to be a key destination for business

 people to be able to make a difference in their 
neighbourhoods

 a strong, dynamic and diverse voluntary sector

 to create inclusive, thriving places where people want to 
learn, live and work and relax

Trafford has successful and 
thriving town centres and 
communities 

Priority 3: 

Supporter of the Employment Charter which enables employers to 
develop jobs, deliver opportunities to progress, and help employers grow and succeed.

Future High Street Fund: through round one, awarded £140k 
grant. This will allow us to commission a business plan to support a bid for funding to 
invest in Stretford.

Social Value Portal launched by STAR procurement: currently STAR 
procurement builds up to 20% weighting (Target) in to the procurement 
process for social value. The Social Value Portal now ensures that these outcomes that 
the suppliers have committed to are delivered. 

Trafford Live was a very successful event held on Talbot Road and around 
Trafford Town Hall in collaboration with Lancashire Cricket Club. We also held a 
VCSE Digitalisation event held with Thrive on 4 June.

Trafford Pledge is an initiative to support young people aged 16 to 24 into 
employment. 19 jobs created through the pledge in Q1.

Trafford Apprenticeship Grant: funding received from GMCA to 
provide apprenticeship grants of £3k to employers taking on an apprentice for the first 
time. 47 grants are available and need to be allocated by 31 March 2020.

Pride events were held in Sale Waterside for the first time in Trafford to 
celebrate identity and LGBTQ+ life in Trafford. 

Trafford Enterprise Support Practitioners network has been 
launched: This network brings together all the start-up business support advisers working 
in Trafford in both the voluntary and public sectors. 

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 45



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to enable all children and young people to thrive and 

achieve their full potential

 our children and young people to be valued and equipped 
with skills for employment and life

 our children and young people to have the best start in life

 our children and young people to be safe in their homes 
and communities

Ensuring a fair start for all 
children and young people 

Priority 4: 

Ofsted inspection children’s social 
care service: Found that our service was inadequate. An 
improvement plan has been developed to raise the quality and reliability of critical 
frontline services to vulnerable children. 

Care Leavers Pledge: This sets out how we can get more 
businesses to support our care leavers including offering discounted goods and 
services or offering work experience so care leavers can develop skills and abilities 
to live independently within the community. 

Care Leavers Takeover Day: This event put young 
people in the driving seat in roles across the Council and provided them with 
quality work experience. 

In partnership with Manchester Digital we hosted the first  
Digital Hero roadshow in Trafford. The aim of the 
roadshow was to inspire Year 8 girls to consider careers in digital / tech sectors. 
The event was supported by a number of female role models from businesses 
including Trafford Council, Microsoft, UA92 and Barclays. 

Developed a new integrated youth offer by combining 
services. Initial recruitment to the new Youth Offer has been completed and the 
new youth work team have been involved in consultation and engagement with 
young people across the borough to assist in the design and branding of the new 
service. 

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 46



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 people to take pride in their local areas
 people to feel safe and secure in their homes and 

communities
 people to respect and take responsibility for their local 

environment
 to encourage and enable people to be more 

environmentally friendly in their daily lives

Creating pride in  
our local area

Priority 5: 

Recycling rates are on target for Q1 achieving 36% against 

a target of  35%.
Recycling Advisors have been recruited to the ‘Right Stuff, 
Right Bin’ campaign, and have started to make household visits and 
attend events to encourage and promote recycling. 

There was increased activity around enforcing against fly-tipping in alleyways 

during April. There were 1,035 fly tipping enforcement actions taken in Q1. 

The Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan (HIAMP) was signed off 
earlier than usual in 2018/19 which means that delivery of the Capital programme 

began sooner than in previous years. A total of 15 schemes have 

been completed in Q1, and the 25 schemes that are planned for Q2 

will put us ahead of schedule.

Altrincham library visitor figures have increased by 30% from opening 
in Dec 18 to June 19.

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 47



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to encourage people to use our green spaces and be 

more active

 to make it easier to move around the borough

 to help people that are less digitally able to get on line

 to maximise the use of technology to transform the way 
we deliver services in all that we do

 to improve our transport links across the borough

 to reduce the impacts of climate change in Trafford

Maximising our green 
spaces, transport and 
digital connectivity 

Priority 6: 

Increased number of Green Flags from 10 to 11 – 
Davyhulme Park is Trafford’s newest Green Flag park.

Draft Digital Strategy shared – number of initiatives 
and projects underway including the appointment of a partner for a long 
term modernisation programme.

Digital Eagles – this programme, hosted by Barclay’s, is 
about learning new digital skills and passing on that digital knowledge 

and expertise to Trafford communities. A total of 15 staff have 
completed the course.

Set up a task and finish group for a climate change 
emergency.

Involved in the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 
conversation.

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 48



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to help people to access the right support at the times in 

their lives when they most need it

 to promote and encourage independence

 to provide clear options to support people with more 
complex needs

 our excellent public service workforce in Trafford to work 
together to support people to live as best they can

Supporting our residents 
when they need it most

Priority 7: 

Homelessness Strategy approved: Annual Target: 

400 households prevented from becoming homeless. Q1: 123 households 
prevented from becoming homeless.

In-house specialist Universal Credit benefits and budgeting 
caseworker service. This is proving successful in enabling people to make the 
best use of benefits and that the welfare scheme for each person is joined up and 
co-ordinated. 

Let’s Talk is the Council’s new approach in Adult Social Care which 
places the person at the heart of decisions over their care and allows social care 
workers to spend more time with people. Let’s Talk is being rolled out throughout 

our Community Social Work Teams. We have had 906 Let’s Talk conversations 
across Q1 and we have widened links with additional community and support 
groups.

Ethical Care Charter launched. The charter ensures 
safety, quality and dignity for vulnerable people in care. The initiative includes 
commitments that staff will be paid for travel time, expenses and have 
opportunities to meet together to avoid isolation.

Delay Transfer of Care (DTOC): Trafford has made 
improvements in DTOC, which is when an adult patient is ready to return home 

from hospital but is still occupying a bed. In Trafford, this has gone from 47.8 

days in 2017 to 8.2 days in May 2019.

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 49



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

We want...
 to ensure Trafford Council workforce have the right skills, 

values and behaviours

 to maintain tight control of finances

 to deliver a high level of customer service

 to maintain statutory responsibilities

Central Services

Preparing budget for 2020/21 financial year.  

We are embedding our people values EPIC (Empower, People Centred, Inclusive 

and Collaborate) in everything we do.

Apprenticeships: 18 new starters this quarter. Our target is 400 over 

a four-year period. As at June 2019 we have 194 starts in total.

Turnover: 2.07% compared to 2.71% in the same period last year.

Overall Sickness absence (% time lost) in Q1 was 3.35%.

Trafford received 349 FOIs (Freedom of Information requests) in Q1, 90% 

were responded to within 20 working days. 

complaints:  2019/20 Q1 Total 1,098. 2018/19 Q1 Total 903
Social media: Twitter followers up by 2,100. Facebook up by 

1,800. Issued 139 press releases/statements. 97 items were deemed 

positive. Value of the publicity: £258k. 
Contact centre received 63,357 calls in Q1. This is a 7% 

decrease on the same time last year. There has been a 27% increase in online 

requests which is in line with our plan to increase online activity.

Our track record so far...

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 50



CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2022 

Contact our Marketing and 
Communications Team for more details 

Tel: 0161 912 4080 

Email: communications@trafford.gov.uk 

Web: www.trafford.gov.uk

Twitter: @traffordcouncil

Working together 
to build the best 
future for all our 

communities/
everyone in 

Trafford

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to:   Trafford Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Date:     
Report for:   Decision  
Report of:  Scrutiny Task and Finish Group – High Rise Tower Block fire          

Safety  
  
 
Report Title 
 

 
Scrutiny Task and finish group Cladding on High Rise Tower Blocks in Trafford 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
Following the tragedy at Grenfell in June 2017 THT have identified five tower 
blocks with cladding that needs to be replaced. The report contains an update 
from THT officers regarding the fire safety in the five tower blocks, why the 
replacement had been delayed, the timescale for the replacement programme, 
and THT’s plans regarding the fitting of sprinklers in buildings within Trafford. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
1. That the Scrutiny Committee note the work that THT has done since the 

Grenfell Tragedy. 

2. That the Scrutiny Committee notes the reasons given by THT for the 

delay in replacing the cladding on the five tower blocks within Trafford. 

3. That the Committee agree that a letter be written to THT on behalf of the 

Committee expressing that the Committee would like to receive an 

update on the replacement programme in March 2020. 

4. That the Committee agree that the letter should contain the Committee’s 

support for THT implementing sprinklers in their buildings in Trafford. 

 

   
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Alexander Murray – Governance Officer   
Extension: 4250 
 
Background Papers: None 
  

Document Pack Page 53



 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Following the tragic events at Grenfell in June 2017 the Trafford Scrutiny Committee 
received a report in July 2017 stated that there were nine high rise tower blocks (over 
18m) in Trafford eight of which were owned by Trafford Housing Trust. Five of the nine 
tower blocks had external cladding which was of concern and needed to be replaced. The 
report detailed the fire safety measures that THT were putting in place to ensure the safety 
of residents in the affected buildings until the cladding could be replaced, which included 
level four fire risk assessments being conducted for each of the affected tower blocks. The 
Committee received further updates in September 2017, March 2018, and October 2018 
which all detailed the continued efforts of THT to ensure that the tower blocks were safe 
but none of the updates gave details of when the Committee could expect that the 
cladding would be replaced.    
 
1.2 The Committee received a report in July 2019 which updated Members on the work 
that had been done and gave a timeline for the replacement of the cladding on the five 
tower blocks. The report stated that work was underway and was scheduled to be 
completed by February 2020. At the meeting Committee Members asked a number of 
questions as to why it had taken so long to being this programme. Council Officers in 
attendance at the meeting informed the Councillors that there had been some issues 
regarding funding and the hiring of experts. However, the Councillors did not feel that the 
answers provided were adequate and so they requested that a separate meeting be called 
with the lead THT officers in order to discuss the matter in detail.   
 
 
2. Meeting between Chair of Trafford Scrutiny Committee and THT 
 
2.1 Councillor Acton met with officers from THT on the 2nd September 2019. In addition to 
the Officers from THT the Watch Manager for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection Team 
also attended the meeting to provide his view on the work that THT had done since 
Grenfell.   
 
2.2 The THT officers confirmed that Trafford had five buildings with some cladding that 
needed to be changed and they assured Councillor Acton that clients had been updated 
continually since Grenfell. THT had received six requests to move and conducted health 
and safety talks with all of the clients in those buildings. Of the six only one person went on 
to move to a new building. The other five all removed their requests following 
conversations with THT. THT had purchased two flats within the five building through the 
sell back scheme which was offered to all those in affected homes. 
 
2.3 The Officers informed Councillor Acton that following Grenfell THT changed their 
approach to health and safety. Previously they had focused upon meeting all of the 
regulations whereas now they tried to demonstrate safety. Since adopting this approach 
THT had increased their investment in fire safety measures and hired a fire safety lead 
officer to perform regular assessments on all THT housing stock and provide bespoke 
training sessions for all the different types of housing that THT had. The Watch Manager 
for Salford and Trafford Fire Protection Team confirmed that the fire safety lead had done 
excellent work since being appointed and that GMFRS had regular contact with him.  
 
2.4 THT had hired Devonshire’s lawyers along with someone from Thompsons, structural 
engineers, to ensure that they found a safe and effective replacement for the cladding.  

Document Pack Page 54



The availability of these experts along with the required materials had led to an 
unavoidable delay to the start of the programme of replacement. The new cladding had 
been selected from the pre-approved list that was released by the government following 
the testing implemented after Grenfell. Work had commenced on the first building in June 
2019 and it was projected that it would take 16 – 20 weeks to complete that building. It 
was hoped that by learning from completing the first block THT would be able to reduce 
the time the others would take. THT had started with Princess tower block and Empress 
was scheduled to start soon with the other three being done in the following year.  It was 
expected that all five would be completed by April 2020 but there was a possibility that the 
project would overrun by 6 – 10 weeks. 
 
2.5 The Hackett report recommended that a building safety manager be appointed for 
each building and THT had appointed safety managers to all of their buildings. The 
managers were in their second week of working and it was hoped that by having these 
officers on site and by taking a proactive approach to health and safety they would be well 
placed if any additional recommendations were to come from the government.  
 
2.6 Councillor Acton raised the issue of retrofitting sprinkler systems within THT buildings 
as they were the gold standard in terms of fire safety. The Officers assured Councillor 
Acton that THT buildings were of a very high standard, especially since they had 
implemented all their recent changes. THT had updated their building policies in response 
to the recommendations of the Hackett report and guidance provided by GMFRS.  
 
2.7 THT had invited all residents from high rise tower blocks to workgroup meetings to 
discuss how they wanted to be communicated with and they had implemented those steps 
to ensure that people received information in the way that they wanted to. Smoke 
detection units had been placed into all of the THT Housing stock. The alarms were silent 
alarms which had a 3 minute response time for someone to go and assess the area. THT 
had done a large amount of work to make sure that the changes that have been made 
have been the best that could be done given the circumstances. 
 
2.8 THT were considering implementing sprinklers in a number of their buildings and had 
held tours for residents to visit high rise buildings that had sprinkler systems so they could 
see how they looked. The visits also gave residents the opportunity to ask people what the 
installation was like. The tour had led to some questions from the residents following the 
tour regarding the ongoing maintenance costs, which were £30 – £60 a year per flat. THT 
were offering to cover the implementation costs, which were £2000 - £2500 per unit, so 
residents would only have to pay for the maintenance. 
 
2.9 A proposal on implementing sprinkler systems in THT buildings was due to go to the 
THT Board. The full report would list the full technical requirements, the expert’s point of 
view, and a list of possible options for roll out across THT.  THT had also been looking at 
the possibility of purchasing some mobile sprinkler systems that could be used for those 
who are identified as particularly at risk. 
 
 
3. Recommendations 
 

1. That the Scrutiny Committee note the work that THT has done since the Grenfell 

Tragedy. 

2. That the Scrutiny Committee notes the reasons given by THT for the delay in 

replacing the cladding on the five tower blocks within Trafford. 

Document Pack Page 55



3. That the Committee agree that a letter be written to THT on behalf of the 

Committee expressing that the Committee would like to receive an update on 

the replacement programme in March 2020. 

4. That the Committee agree that the letter should contain the Committee’s support 

for THT implementing sprinklers in their buildings in Trafford. 

 

Document Pack Page 56



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Scrutiny Committee  
Date:    13 November 2019 
Report for:   Information 
Report of:  Chair of the Scrutiny Committee   
  
Report Title 
 

 
Overview Report 
 

 
Purpose 
 

 
This report provides information on the following: 
 

 Work Programme 

 Task & Finish Groups 

 Recommendation Tracker 

 Greater Manchester Scrutiny Committee Meeting Updates 
 

 
Recommendations 
 

 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Alexander Murray, Democratic and Scrutiny Officer. 
Phone: x4250 
 

Document Pack Page 57



1. Work Programme 

Wednesday 3 July 2019 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall  
Report submission deadline – midday Tuesday 25  June 2019 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

Fire Safety in High Rise 
Tower Blocks 

To receive a further update on safety 
in high rise tower blocks in Trafford.  
 

Councillor Wright - 
Executive Member 
for Housing and 
Regeneration 
 

Richard Roe The Committee received an 
update on this topic at their 
meeting in October 2018. It was 
agreed that a further report be 
brought to a future meeting to 
provide an update on progress. 

Presentation by GMFRS on 
Retrofitting Sprinklers 
 

To receive a presentation on the 
options available for retrofitting 
sprinkler systems in buildings  

Councillor Wright - 
Executive Member 
for Housing and 
Regeneration 
 

N/A At the Scrutiny Committee 
meeting on 3 October 2018, the 
Chair requested that Greater 
Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service (GMFRS) provide a 
presentation to the Committee 
on how retrofitting sprinkler 
systems in buildings could be 
done. The Chair will contact the 
relevant people to schedule this. 
 

Annual Scrutiny Report To receive the annual report of the 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer on the work 
of all three Scrutiny Committees 
during the 2018/19 municipal year. 

N/A Statutory 
Scrutiny Officer 

The Annual Scrutiny Report 
comes to the Committee for 
Comment and sign off prior to 
being submitted at full Council in 
July 2019. 

Work Programme The Committee are to discuss and 
agree the proposed work programme 
for the 2019/20 municipal year. 
Members have the opportunity to 

N/A - Report of the 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 

Alexander 
Murray 

 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 58



propose any items of business to be 
added to the Committee’s Work 
programme.  
 

 

Wednesday 13 November 2019 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 5 November 2019 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2020/21 Budget Gap and 
Assumptions / Progress 
against the financial risks 
Identified as part of the 
2019/20 Budget Scrutiny 
process 

An update on the 2020/21 Budget 
Gap and the assumptions behind this 
to be provided to the Committee. 
 
As part of the 2019/20 Budget 
Scrutiny process, the Committee 
were provided a list of the proposed 
savings / income generation and the 
risks associated with achieving these. 
The Committee would like an update 
on progress against these. 
 

Cllr Tom Ross - 
Finance 

Nikki Bishop  

2020/21 Budget 
Presentation by the Leader 
of the Council  

The Committee will receive the 
2019/20 draft budget proposals, 
accompanied by a presentation to be 
delivered by the Leader of the 
Council. 
 

Cllr A Western – 
Leader of the 
Council 
Cllr M Cordingley - 
Finance 

Nikki Bishop The presentation (considered in 
conjunction with the update on 
the Investment Strategy) was 
presented to the Committee. 
The Chair and Vice-Chair would 
confirm the arrangements for 
the Budget Scrutiny sessions 
scheduled for 4 and 6 
December 2018 in due course. 
 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 59



2019/20 Corporate Plan To receive the Corporate Plan Q1 
Performance report  

Executive Member 
for Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Jane Le Fevre   

Social Investment 
Framework – Trafford 
Housing Trust 

A report providing a further update on 
the arrangements for Trafford 
Housing Trust’s Social Investment 
Framework. 
 

N/A THT Social 
Investment 
Fund Manager 

Following an update at the 
Scrutiny Committee meeting in 
March 2018, it was agreed that 
a further update be brought to 
the Committee to provide a 
progress update. 
 

High rise cladding task and 
finish group report 

A report of the Task and finish group 
which looked into the replacement of 
cladding on high rise tower blocks 
within Trafford 

N/A - Report of the 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 

Alexander 
Murray 

 

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A - Report of the 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 

Alexander 
Murray 

 

 

Budget Scrutiny 

There are two Budget Scrutiny sessions scheduled for the 3 and 5 December 2019. Discussions at these sessions, along with the 

presentation scheduled to be delivered at the Committee’s meeting 3 October 2019 meeting will help formulate the Scrutiny 

Committee’s Budget Scrutiny report to the Executive (To be presented to Scrutiny at the 15 January 2020 meeting). 

 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 60



Wednesday 15 January 2020 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 7 January 2020 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2020/21 Budget Scrutiny 
Report 

A report produced by the Scrutiny 
Committee providing its 
recommendations on the 2020/21 
Budget Proposals. 
 

N/A – Report of 
the Scrutiny 
Committee 

Jane Le Fevre  

TRO List and Prioritisation 
Process 

To receive an exhaustive list of all 
TROs ongoing. To receive a report 
detailing the process by which TROs 
are added to the list and how they are 
prioritised. The Committee would also 
like to receive information explaining 
how often the list is reviewed and 
what actions are taken regarding low 
priority TROs which will  not be 
fulfilled. 

Councillor 
Adshead - 
Executive Member 
Environment, 
Clean Air, and 
Climate Change. 

  

Further update on the 
Implementation of the CRM 
Services Programme 

To receive a report providing an 
update on the implementation of the 
CRM Service Programme. 
 

Executive Member 
for Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Jane Le Fevre  At the meeting in October 2018, 
the Committee received the 
Executive’s response to the 
Task & Finish Group review 
conducted by the Committee. It 
was agreed that a further update 
on implementation be brought to 
a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

2018/19 Ombudsman 
Report 

The Committee receives the annual 
report on Ombudsman complaints for 
information. 

Cllr Freeman – 
Public Safety, 
Governance, and 
Reform  

Jane Le Fevre  

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 61



Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 

N/A Jane Le Fevre  

Wednesday 13 March 2019 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 5 March 2019 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

Executive Response to the 
2020/21 Budget Scrutiny 
Report 

A report providing a response to the 
recommendations made by the 
Scrutiny Committee as part of the 
2020/21 Budget Scrutiny process. 
 

Cllr A Western – 
Leader of the 
Council 
Cllr M Cordingley 
- Finance 

Nikki Bishop  

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A Jane Le Fevre  

     

 

  

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 62



Items to be scheduled 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

     

     

     

 

  

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 63



2. Task & Finish Groups 

Topic Information Members Status 

Affordable Housing in Trafford This has been identified as a 
possible area of focus for a 
Task & Finish Group review. 
 

Cllrs A. Williams (Chair), D. 
Acton, R. Thompson 

Due to a number of the Members of 
the group no longer being on the 
Scrutiny Committee a request to join 
the group has been sent to 
Committee Members. 
 

Climate Emergency 
 

A motion was agreed at the 
full Council meeting on 28 
November 2018, which 
committed the Council to 
declare a Climate Emergency. 
A new Task & Finish Group 
would be established to 
develop a carbon budget and 
set a challenging target date 
for carbon neutrality in 
Trafford. 
 

Councillors Acton (Chair), 
Boyes, Brophy, Carey, 
Coggins, Jerrome, Longden, 
Shaw, and Slater. 

A report was presented to the 
Executive in September 2019. The 
report along with the Executive 
response will be delivered to full 
Council. 

High Rise Cladding 
replacement  

A spotlight task and finish 
group formed to meet with 
THT officers following the 
Committee meeting in July. 
The group was specifically 
established to look at the 
cladding replacement 
schedule and why it had been 
delayed. 

Councillor Acton (Chair), 
Winstanley, and Williams 

The Chair of the group met with 
Officers from THT and GMFRS and 
the results of the meeting went into a 
report submitted to the Scrutiny 
Committee meeting 13 November 
2019 

Disability Access Proposed by Councillor 
Winstanley and agreed  by the 

Councillors Winstanley (Chair), 
Acton, Akinola, Lloyd, Haddad, 

There have been two meetings and 
following the second meeting two 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 64



Committee at their meeting 
July 2019. 

Holden, Lamb, Minnis, Shirley 
Procter, Welton, Williams 

Trafford residents have agreed to be 
co-opted onto the group. The next 
meeting will be early in 2020. 

One Trafford Partnership The Committee have agreed 
to conduct a Task & Finish 
Group review of the One 
Trafford Partnership. 

Cllrs Acton (Chair), Bowker, 
Boyes, Coupe, Longden, 
Shaw, Thomas and Williams. 
 

Following the Committee’s report the 
Executive Commissioned a 
consultant to look at the contract and 
possible actions. The Executive 
received a report in October 2019 
 

  

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 65



3. Recommendation Tracker 
 
There are no formal Scrutiny Committee recommendations awaiting an Executive response. 
 

Scrutiny Recommendation  Executive Response   

One Trafford Partnership 
Recommendation 1 - That the Executive conduct an assessment of 
the feasibility of the following 3 options; 
 

1. Consider alternative models of service delivery, including the 
development of an In-House Service model, with a view to 
ending the contract with Amey. 
 

2. Review the contract with Amey with a clear intent that there 
should be a wholesale reshaping of the contract and 
partnership between Amey and the Council. 

 
3. Continue the Amey Contract and seek significant 

improvements to the delivery of existing services. 
  
If it is determined that all options are feasible then option 1 is the 
preferred option of the Scrutiny Committee.  
 
Recommendation 2 – That an update be provided to Scrutiny once 
the Executive has considered the report. 
 Executive consideration is ongoing 

Executive consideration is ongoing 

Recommendation 2 – That an update be provided to Scrutiny once 
the Executive has considered the report. 
 

1. That a Committee be established to coordinate the Council’s work 

relating to Climate Emergency. 

 

Recommendations presented to Executive 30 September 
2019. Executive response to be delivered to Council. 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 66



2. That the Committee complete activity one through four with the 

support of external experts and partners. 

 

3. That the Committee have executive membership as well as lead 

officers from Public Health, Licensing, Procurement, Amey, 

Highways, Planning, and any other key areas identified. 

 

4. That there be a lead Executive member dedicated to the Climate 

Emergency. 

 

5. That a dedicated officer role, reporting to the Corporate Director of 

Place, be created to drive the Climate Emergency Agenda forward. 

 

6. That the Committee will oversee the action plan and monitor 

Trafford’s performance against carbon reduction targets. 

  

7. That the Councils Carbon Budget be published annually alongside 

the Financial Budget. 

 

8. That an additional Scrutiny Committee or Sub Committee be 

established with the sole purpose of Scrutinising the Council and 

their partners in relation to the Climate Emergency. 

  

9. That Climate Emergency Implications and sustainability be listed as 

an area to be considered in reports and that the guidance to officers 

be updated to bring it in line with the Council’s current targets as per 

appendix 1. 

 

10. That Climate Emergency be added to the Corporate Plan an 

additional priority forming part of the annual report and performance 

monitoring. 

 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 67



11. That the Council roll out Carbon literacy training across the 

workforce and Councillors. 

 

12. That Climate Emergency champions be recognised within the 

organisation. 

 

13. That a comprehensive Communication and Engagement Strategy 

be developed and considers the following methods; 

 Dedicated Climate Emergency Section of the Council’s Website 

 Wide distribution of the Public Health Annual Plan 

 Internal communications (sections on the intranet) 

 Have Climate Emergency resources available at Council 

Buildings  

 Hold Climate Emergency events or sessions at libraries 

 Hold Climate Emergency challenge among Trafford schools 

 Support of existing Climate Emergency VCSE groups within 

Trafford 

 Utilising Citizens Juries (Dr Malcolm Oswald) 

 Support the creation of a citizen’s assembly  

 Community energy projects 

 Advertise  and champion the resources created by Greater 

Manchester on tackling Climate Emergency 

 

14. That the Executive consider the 33 Actions for Local Authorities laid 

out by Friends of the Earth and implement as many as possible. 

  

15. That the Executive consider immediate implementation of the 

following actions as quick wins; 

 Buy Green Energy 

 Adjust the Council Social Value weighting in procurement so that 

reducing carbon footprint, planting trees etc. are counted as 

elements of social value 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 68



 Increase number of EV Charging points in Trafford 

 Stop promoting measures that increase greenhouse gasses 

 Install food waste collection bins in all Council buildings 

(including in kitchens for employees)  

 

16. That the Executive ask officers to complete the Trafford position 

column of appendix 2. 

 
 

  

4. Greater Manchester Scrutiny Committee Updates 
 
Greater Manchester Corporate Issues & Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Councillor Ann Duffield, Councillor Dave 
Morgan 
 
17 September 2019, 15 October 2019,  
 
 
Greater Manchester Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Councilor Barry Brotherton,  
 

13 September 2019, 11 October 2019 
 
Greater Manchester Housing Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny – Kevin Procter 
 
No meetings have been held since July 
 

 

D
ocum

ent P
ack P

age 69

https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=2548&Ver=4
https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=216&MId=2549&Ver=4
https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=2541&Ver=4
https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=148&MId=2542&Ver=4


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 TRAFFORD HOUSING TRUST SOCIAL INVESTMENT FUND
	6 BUDGET PRESENTATION
	7 2019/20 CORPORATE PLAN Q1 PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Item 7 - Corporate Plan 2019 Q1 Scrutiny 13.11.19

	8 TASK AND FINISH GROUP HIGH RISE CLADDING REPLACEMENT
	9 OVERVIEW REPORT

